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NPS Property Consultants Limited 4
Financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2011

Report of the directors

The directors present theiwr report and the financial statements of the company and group for the year
ended 31 January 2012

Princlpal actlvities and business review

The principal activittes of the group are that of professional property consultants, providing services 1n the
areas of architectural desygn, buillding surveying and CDM and project management

Overview

INPS continued to consolidate its positon wathun its core markets, despite extremely difficult trading
conditions ansing from reductions 1n Local Authority capital related funded expenditure and declining fee
rates Income reductions from existing partnenng arrangements were however offset by mncome denved
from new partnering arrangements and external chients, with the overall impact being that year-on-year
mcome remained the same Despite the difficult trading conditions, NPS masntamed a high chent
retention ratio

The Group delivers mulu-discipline property consultancy services pnmarily via eight long-term partnering
arrangements with Local Authorittes In additton the Group also delivers services via a large number of
framework contracts with Local Authonties and London Boroughs, as well as via specific commercially
won contracts with private sector clients With such a wide and diverse client base, NPS has achieved
particular recognition for providing mnnovative and cost effective solutions to chents’ property 1ssues by
mncorporating best practce principles whilst subscribing to the need to protect the environment and
employ sustainable methods of construction wherever possible

The Group’s gross profit margin (excluding the impact of IAS19 adjustments) declined to 21% (2011 -
25%), however this was mmpacted by redundancy costs n the year of £1,150,000 (2011 - £562,000)

The Group’s notable successes dunng the year included,

A new fifteen year joint venture partnership with Barnsley MBC,
Multi-disciphine framework with Cumbna County Council,
A four year project management framework with Hertfordshire County Council,

Mulu-disciphine framework for capital and revenue building programmes with East Sussex
County Counal

® & o @

In addiuon, the NPS Group has recetved national professional recognition being ranked 14th in Bulding
Magazme’s Top 100 Surveyors 2011, 20th 1n the AJ100 bist of biggest architectural practices for 2011 and
20th i Building Magarine’s Top 100 Consultants 2011
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Outlook and post balance sheet events

The group’s core markets are based primarily upon the number of long-term partnership contracts the
group has with Local Authorities and government bodies, but it conunues to seek new partnership
agreements, ad-hoc commussions and commercial acquisitions to strengthen 1ts position

Sice the year-end there have been a number of events that improve the outlook for 2012/2013 and
beyond and the tost significant of these are,

¢ Formation of a new 10-year joint venture partnershp with Leeds County Council to provide
mulu-discipline property services worth around £2 malhon a year,

¢ Formaton of a new 10-year joint venture partnership with Norwich City Counctl to provide
estates services worth around £1 mullion a year

The Group amms to improve exising profit margins in the year ahead

Key paerformance indicators

The group uses a range of performance measures to monitor and manage the business effectively These
are both financial and non-financial and the most significant of these are the key performance wndicators
(KPT’s) The key financial performance indicators are turnover, gross profit and margin, net profit and
margin  These KPI’s indicate the volume of work the group has undertaken as well as the efficiency and
profitability with which this work has been dehvered

The Board believe that in order to gain a true reflection and appreciation of the group's trading activittes,
the financial KPT's should be stated before the impact of penston adjustments made under IAS19 (see
footnote) The KPI’s for the year to 31 January 2012, with comparatives, are as follows

2012 2011
Turnover excluding share of associate (£'000} 76,765 76,765
Gross profit (£000) 15,960 19,298
Gross profit margin 20.8% 251%
Net (loss)/profit before tax {£'000) (1,188) 266
Net {loss)/profit margin (£'000) (1.5%) 03%
Average number of employees 1,367 1,248

The results for the financial yeat show 2 consistent turnover of £77millilon The new subsidiary
companies, NPS Barnsiey Lunited and Barnsiey Norse Lirmuted, have generated tumover of £10m  This
has, however, been offset by a2 reduction in turnover from existing partering arrangerments as a resuit of
reductions 1n Local Authority spend

The gross profit margin declined to 21% (2011 - 25%) due to a number of one-off costs, pnmanly
redundancy and associated costs and this also impacted the net profit margin - The average number of
employees has increased as a result of the two new Barnsley subsidiartes  Average employee numbers
across the rest of the group have decreased from 1,248 to 1,124, partly as a result of redundancies in the
year Having reduced the employee base, the group 1s now well placed to deal with the anticipated
workload for 2012/2013 and beyond

The IAS19 pension adjustment 1s a credit to the income statement of £157,000 (2011 credit to the income statement of
£8,288,000) This represents employer contnbutions paid of £5,100,000 less the penston cost charged to the mncome
statement of £4,799,000 less the net finance charge within finance costs of £144,000 The prior year IAS 19 pension
adjustment represented employer contnibutions paid of £4,480,000 plus the pension cost credited to operating profit of
£4,191,000 less the net finance charge within finance costs of £383,000)
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Financlal statements for the year ended 31 January 2012

Financlal risk management objectives and policles

In common with other businesses, the group aims to mimmise financial sk The measures used by the
directors to manage this nisk include the preparauon of profit and cash flow forecasts, regular montoning
of actual performance against these forecasts and ensuring that adequate financing facihues are mn place to
meet the requirements of the business  Trade debtors are also closely montored to keep the nsk of bad
debts to 2 minumum

Ctedit nsk

Crecit linuts are set for customers based on a combination of credit checks and trading history, the lumuts
are reviewed regularly and the debts are acuvely chased by the credit control department

Intetest rate risk

Borrowings attract interest at both fixed and varable rates, the vanable element 1s agreed at regular
mtervals with the lending party

Liquidity nsk

Workig capital requirements are regularly reviewed 1n conjuncuon with available financing faciities as
patt of routine financial management

Directors

The directors who served the company during the year were as follows

M L Bntch

P M Hawes

A T Willlams

D R White (appointed 1 Apnl 2011)
P W Adams (resigned 31 March 2011)

The group maintains hability insurance for 1ts directors and officers The directors and officers have also
been granted a quabfying third party indemmnuty provision under section 234 of the Companies Act 2006
Neither the company's indemnity not tnsutance provides cover in the event that a director or officer 1s
proved to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly

Results and dividends

The loss for the financial year was £757,000 (2011 profit of £6,223,000) The directors have not
recommended a dividend

Donations

Durning the year the group made the following contributions
2012 201
£'000 £000

Charitable 1 258
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Princlpal risks and uncertaintles

The prncipal risk and uncertanty facing the group 1s that the bulk of the group's revenue 1s with Local
Authonittes  Cuts 1n local government spending are likely to impact on the volume of work avalable to
the NPS Group from existing customers The group 1s seeking to mungate this risk by sceking new
partnership agreements, ad-hoc commussions and commercial acquisinons to strengthen its posttion,

Statement of directors’ responsiblilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the report of the directors and the financial statements 1n
accordance wrth applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financtal year Under that law
the directors have elected to prepare the individual financial statements of the company 1n accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Practice (United Kingdom Accounung Standards
and applicable laws) and have elected to prepare the Group financial statements i accordance with
International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion  Under company
law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affawrs and profit or loss of the company and group for that period In
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

. select swutable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
¢  make jJudgements and accounting estunates that are reasonable and prudent,

¢ state whether applicable UK Accounung Standards and IFRSs have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explamed 1n the financal statements,

e  prepare the financial statements on the gomng concern basts unless 1t 15 tnappropriate to presume that
the group wall continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounung records that are sufficzent to show and
explain the company’s transacuons and disclose wath reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compantes Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarcing the assets of the company and hence for takung
reasonable steps for the preventon and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

‘The directors confirm that

o 5o far as each director ts aware, there is no relevant audit informaton of which the group's auditor 1
unaware, and

¢ the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as directors m order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit mformation and to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information

Employee Involvement

The directors recognise the importance of the employees to the ongoing success of the group and they
ensute that they are all suitably qualified to undertake their roles and responsibihties  The recruitment and
retention of employees 13 a key company objective and once employees have been recrutted, all necessary
training 1s put mto place including:

Inducuon course

Customer care traimng

Continuous tramming and development for professional employees
Business related tramning as rdentfied via the appraisal of employees

Management training as appropriate

Personal development
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Disabled employees

Applicauons for employment by disabled persons are given full and fair consideration for all vacances in
accordance with thetr particular aptitudes and abilities In the event of an employee becoming disabled,
every effort 15 made to retain them in order that thewr employment wath the group may conunue

Policy on the payment of creditors

The group endeavours to pay all invoices by the end of the month following the month of mvoice

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

G ey

G Reynolds
Secretary
24 July 2012
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Independent auditor's report to the member of
NPS Property Consultants Limited

We have audited the financial statements of NPS Property Consultants Limuted for the year ended 31
January 2012 which comprise the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated balance sheet and the parent company balance sheet, the
consolidated statement of changes in equuty, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related
notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial
statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unton The financtal reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements 13 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounung Standards {United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Thus report 15 made solely to the company’s member 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company’s
member those matters we are requured to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s member for our audit wotk, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explamned more fully in the statement of directors responsibilittes set out on page 7, the directors are
responstble for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditng (UK and Ireland) Those standards requure us
to comply with the Audiing Pracuces Board’s {APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on the financial statements
In our optnion

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the parent
company's affairs as at 31 January 2012 and of the group's loss for the year then ended,

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared 1n accordance with IFRS as adopred
by the European Unton,

- the parent company financial statements have been propetly prepared 1n accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- the financial statements have been prepated in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006
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Independent auditor's report to the member of
NPS Property Consultants Limited (continued)

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companlies Act 2006

In our opinion the mformation given mn the report of the directors' for the financial year for which the
financal statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2000 requires us
to report to you if, 1n our opiuon

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns, or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not recewved all the informaton and explanatons we require for our audit

Nigel Savory

Sentor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thorton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
NORWICH
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Consolidated income statement
2012 201
Note £'000 £000
Group revenue 4 76,765 76,765
Cost of sales - recurning (59,354) (56,675)
Cost of sales - non-recurning 5 (1,150) 7,879
Cost of sales (60,504) (48,796)
Gross profit 16,261 27,969
Administrative expenses (17,728) (19,398)
Other operating income 673 466
Group operating (loss)/ profit 5 %% 9,037
Recurring 356 1,158
Non-recurring (1,150) 7,879
(794) 9,037
Share of profit from equity accounted investments 14 6 5
Finance income 8 14 27
Finance costs 9 (257) (515)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (1,031) 8,554
Taxaton 10 274 (2,331)
(Loss)/ profit for the financial yeat {(757) 6,223
(Loss)/ profit for the financial year attributable to.
Non-controling interests 28 97 430
QOwmers of the parent {854) 5,793
(757 6,223

All of the activities of the group ate classed as contnuing

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
2012 20m
Note £'000 £000
{Loss)/profit fot the financial year (757) 6,223
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Actuanal loss in respect of defined benefit pension scheme 25 (7,292) (1,255)
Deferred tax in respect of defined benefit pension scheme 16 1,823 339
Movement in deferred tax 1n respect of pension scheme ansing from
change 1n rates 16 (484) (313)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax (5,953) {1,229)
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year (6,710) 4,994
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year attributable to.
Non-controlling interests (446) 181
Owmers of the parent (6,264) 4,813
(6,710) 4,994

The accompanying accounting policles and notes form part of these financlal statements,
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Consolidated balance sheet
2012 2011 2010
Note £'000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Gooduall 1 4,085 4,085 4135
Other mtangible assets 12 1,152 1,316 1,658
Property plant and equipment 13 2,222 2,777 2,989
Investments accounted for using the equity method 14 36 30 11
Deferred tax asset 16 8,088 6,906 9,099
Non-current assets 15,583 15,114 17,892
Current assets
Inventories 17 429 370 753
Trade and other recewvables 18 18,877 18,774 20,071
Current tax assets 473 281 -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 1,501 1,367 797
Current assets 21,280 20,792 21,621
Total assets 36,863 35,906 39,513
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (23,646) (22,395) (22,360)
Current tax habilities - - {652)
Obligatnons under finance leases 22 (55) (80) (165)
Borrowings and overdrafis 23 (174) (417) (795)
Current liabihities (23,875) (22,892 (23,972
Non-current iabilities
Obhgations under finance leases 22 (50) (101) (189
Botrowings and overdrafts 23 - (400) (800)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (31,353) (24,218) (31,251)
Non-current liabilities (31,403) {24719) (32,240
Total habihines {55,278) {47,611) (56,212)
Net hiabihties {18,415) {11,705) (16,699)
Equaty
Equity attnibutable to owners of the parent
Share capital 29 2,543 2,543 2,543
Retained earnings (20,257) (13,993) (18,806)
(17,714) {11,450) (16,263)
Non-controlling interests 28 (701) (255) {436)
Total equity (18,415) (11,705) (16,699)

their behalf by

M L Bntch

The accompanying accounting policles and notes form part of these financlal statements.

These financial statements were approved by the directors and authornised for 1ssue on 24 July 2012
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

2012 2011
Note £'000 £000
Operatng acuvities
(Loss)/profit before tax (1,031) 8,554
Adjustments 30 5,879 {2,108)
Contnbutions to defined benefit pension plans 25 (5,100) (4,480)
Net changes 1n working capital 30 1,071 1,715
Taxes recewved/ (patd) 239 (1,046)
Cash flow from operating activines 1,058 2,635
Invesung activiues
Purchase of property plant and equipment (137) (905)
Purchase of intangible assets (229) (94)
Proceeds from disposal of property plant and equipment 20 4
Purchase of shares m associate undertaking - (14)
Interest recerved 14 27
Cash flow from mvesting actvities (332) (982)
Financing activities
Repayment of loan notes (400) {(400)
Interest pad (113) {132)
Caputal element of finance lease repayments (76) (173
Cash flow from financng activiues (589) (705)
Net change 1n cash and cash equivalents 137 948
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,350 402
Cash and cash equivalents at the end the year 1,487 1,350
Cash and cash equivalents comprtse.
Cash at bank 19 1,501 1,367
Bank overdraft 23 (14 (17
1,487 1,350

The accompanying accounting policles and notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

Nature of operations

The company and group provide property consultancy services including architectural services, CDM and
project managernent, building surveying, valuation and estate management, land agency, quantity
surveymg, graphic design and archaeological services

Generai Information and statement of compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed and adopted for use in the Furopean Unicn,
International Financiai Reporang Interpretattons Commuttee (TFRIC') interpretanons and the Compantes
Act 2006 applicable to compaties reportng under IFRS  These are the Group's first financial statements
prepated 1n accordance with IFRS (see note 32 for explanation of the transition to IFRS) The date of
transiton to IFRS 1s 1 February 2010

The financtal framework that has been applied 1n the preparation of the parent company financial
statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accountng Standards (Untted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

Summary of accounting policies

3.1. Overall considerations and first time adoption of IFRS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using accounting pohcies specified by those
IFRSs that are 1n effect at the end of the reporting pertod (31 January 2012)

The significant accounting policies that have been applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below

These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements,
except where the Group has applied certain accounting policies and exemptons upon transition to IFRS
The exempnons applied by the Group and the effects of transiton to IFRS are as presented in note 32

3.2. Going concern

As shown within the Key Performance Indicators, set out 1n the report of the directors, the group has
made a loss for the year of £1 2Zm after ehnmunating the impact of IAS19 pension adjustments This 1s
however after one-off redundancy costs amounang to £1,150k The full benefit of the reduced on-going
staff costs will be seen during the 2012/13 financial year

Forecasts prepared by the directors indicate that the group will retutn to profitability i the 2012/13
financial year Furthermore the group does not have significant external botrowings other than the bank
overdraft The bulk of any finance required by the Norse Group 1s provided by the ultimate controlling
party, Norfolk County Council, by way of available loan faciites The facility available to the overall
Norse Group from Norfolk County Council at the year end was £17m A formal letter has been obtaned
from Norfolk County Council confirming that it will continue to make available this facility at the current
level for a pertod of at least twelve months from the signing of these financial statements The directors
do not anucaipate any further finance faciiies being required by the NPS Property Consultants group over
the next twelve months

As a consequence the directors believe that the group 1s well placed to manage 1ts business rsks
successfully despite the current uncertain economic oudook Accordingly, it remains appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis




NFP$S Property Consultants Limited 17
Financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2012

3.3. Basis of consolidation

The group financtal statements consolidate those of the parent company and all of 1ts subsidiary
undertakings drawn up to 31 January 2012 Subsidiaries are all entittes over which the Group has the
powet to control the finanaial and operating policies  NPS Property Consultants obtains and exercises
control through more than half of the voung nights for all its subsidianies  All subsidianies have a
reporung date of 31 January

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation, including
unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies  Amounts reported in the fnancial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounung
policies adopted by the Group

Profit ot loss and other comprehensive income of subsidanies acquired or disposed of durning the year 1s
recognused from the effective date of acqusitton, or up to the effecuve date of disposal, as applicable

Non-controlling interests tepresent the portion of a subsidiary's profir or loss and net assets or habilities
that 1s not held by the Group In accordance with TAS 27 (revised 2008) all earrungs and losses of the
subsidiary are attributed to the parent and the non-controlling interest in the absence of explicat
agreements to the contrary, even 1f the attribution of losses to the non-controling mterest results in a
debit balance 1n shareholders’ equity

3.4. Business comblinations

Business combinations occurring on or after 1 February 2010 are accounted for using the acquisition
method under the revised IFRS 3 Busmess Combinations (IFRS 3R) The consideration transferred by
the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary 1s calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
assets transferred, Llabilities ncurred and the equuty interests 1ssued by the Group, which includes the fair
value of any asset or liabihity arising from a contingent consideration arrangement Acqusition costs are
expensed as incurred

The Group recognises identfiable assets acquired and habilittes assumed, including contingent habilities,
in 2 business combinzuon regardless of whether they have been previously recognised in the acquiree’s
financial statements prior to the acquisiton Assets acquired and hiabilities assumed are generally measured
at their acquisitton-date fair values

Goodwall 1s stated after separate recognition of 1dentifiable intangible assets It 1s calculated as the excess
of the sum of a) fair value of constderauon wansferred, b) the recogmsed amount of any non-controlling
interest i the acquiree and ) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree, over
the acquisition-date fair values of idenufiable net assets If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed
the sum calculated above, the excess amount (1e gamn on a bargain purchase)} 1s recognised in profit or loss
immediately

See note 32 5(a) for informanon on business combinations prior to 1 February 2010
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3.5. Investments In assoclates

Associates are those entittes over which the Group 1s able to exert sigruficant influence but which are
netther subsidiaries nor interests i a jomnt venture Investments in associates are mitially recognised at cost
and subsequently accounted for using the equity method

Acquired investments in associates are also subject to the purchase method as explamned in note 3 4 above
However, any goodwill or farr value adjustment attmbutable to the Group's share in the associate 1s
included i the amount recognised as investment 1n associates

All subsequent changes to the Group’s share of interest in the equuty of the assoctate are recognised in the
carrying amount of the investment Changes resultng from the profit or loss generated by the associate
ate reported within 'Share of profit from equity accounted investments' 1n profit or loss These changes

include subsequent depreciation, amortisation or impatrment of the fair value adjustments of assets and
liabihties

Changes tesulting from other comprehensive income of the associate or items recogrused directly in the
assoctate’s equity are recognised in other comprehensive mncome or equty of the Group, as applicable

Unrealised gains and losses on transactions between the Group and its assocates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest 1n those entittes Where unrealised losses are ebminated, the underlying
asset 15 also tested for impairment losses from a group perspective

Amounts reported in the financial statements of associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies of the Group

3.6. Segmental reporting

The group 1s not requured to include informaton required by IFRS 8 Operating Segments on the grounds
that the entity does not have any debt or equity instruments which are traded in a public market

3.7. Revenue

Revenue comprises revenuc from the sale of goods and the rendening of services Revenue 1s measured
by reference to the fair value of consideranon received or recervable by the Group for goods supplied and
services provided, excluding VAT, rebates, and trade discounts

Revenue 15 recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it 1s probable thar the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the ennty, the costs ncurred or to be
incurred can be measured reliably, and when the enitenta for cach of the Group's different acuvities has
been met These activity-specific recognition criteria are based on the goods or solutions provided to the
customer and the contract conditions 1n each case, and are described below

Revenue from the sale of goods 15 recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods In pracuce the satisfaction of these conditions generally
cotncides with when the goods are delivered

Revenue from a contract to provide scrvices 1s tecognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the balance sheet date  Further information regarding the assessment of the stage of
completion 1s provided below
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Revenue (continued)
Property Consultancy Services

Revenue n respect of property consultancy services 1s generally earned under fixed sum contracts, on a
ume-charge basis or under fixed term setvice agreements

Where there 15 a fixed sum contract with agreed milestones, revenue 1s recognised in line with RTBA plan
of work stages and the achievement of the agreed mulestones In other cases revenue 1s recognised using
the percentage of completon method, based on the proportion of costs incurred at the balance sheet date
to the total estimated cost of completing the contracted work Where work 1s performed on a time charge
basts revenue 1s recogrused based on the number of hours work that has been performed at the balance
sheet date Revenue eamed under fixed term service agreements 1s generally recogmised on a straight term
basis over the length of the contract

Revenue from long-term contracts represents the sales value of work done in the year, mcluding fees
invoiced and estimates in respect of amounts to be invorced aftet the year end Profits are recognised on
long-term contracts where the final outcome can be assessed with reasonable certainty In calculatng the
profit attributable to the pertod, the percentage of completion method 1s used based on the proportion of
costs incurred at the balance sheet date to the total esumated cost of completing the contracted work

Full provision 1s made for all known or anticipated losses on each contract immediately such losses are
forecast Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated reliably revenue 1s recogrused
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it 1s probable will be recoverable

Gross amounts due from customets are stated at the proportion of the anocpated net sales value earned
to date less amounts billed on account To the extent that fees paid on account exceed the value of work
performed, they are included wathin accruals and deferred income

3.8. Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised 1n profit or loss upon utilisation of the service or at the date of their

orgin
3.9. Goodwill

Goodwnll ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilites of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition

Goodwall 1s mnitally recognised as an asset at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
tmpairment losses [t 1s reviewed for impawment at least annually Any impatrment 1s recognised
immedately 1n profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating unuts for the purpose of impairment tesing  Any impairment 15
recognised immedsately 1n the income statement On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of
goodwll 15 included 1n the determination of the profit or loss on disposal

Goodwill artsing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retaned at the previous
UK GAAP amounts subject to bemng tested for impatrment at that date
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3.10. Intangible assets

Intangible assets arc accounted for using the cost model whereby capitzlised costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estinated useful lives, as these assets are considered finite Residual values
and useful lives are reviewed at each reporung date In addition, they are subject to unpairment testing as
descrbed 1n note 313

The amorusation charge for the year 1s ncluded within administrative expenses

The useful lives are detatled 1n note 12

3.11. Property plant and equipment

Buildings, plant and machinery, motor vehicles, computer equipment, and other equipment (comprsing
fixrures and fittings) are carned at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost less subsequent depreciatton and
impairment losses

Depreciation 1s recognised to write down the cost less esimated residual value of property, plant and
equipment The penods and/or tates generally applicable are

Leasehold property improvements - shorter of ten years or over period of lease
Plant & equpment - 25% reducing balance

Motor vchicles - 25% reducing balance

Computer equipment - 20 % straight kine

Gauns or losses ansing on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised i profit ot loss
within 'administrative expenses’

3.12. Leased assets

In accordance with IAS 17 Leases, the economic ownership of a leased asset 1s transferred to the lessee 1f
the lessee bears substantally all the risks and rewards related to the ownership of the leased asset The
related asset 1s then recogrused at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset of, of lower,
the present value of the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any A corresponding amount s
recogrused as a finance leasing liability, irrespective of whether some of these lease payments are payable
up-front at the date of incepuion of the lease Leases of land and buildings are classified separately and are
split into a land and a building element, 1n accordance wath the relative farr values of the leaschold
intetests at the date the asset 1s recognised 1mtally

Deprecraton methods and useful lives for assets held under finance lease agreements, correspond to those
applied to comparable assets which are legally owned by the Group The corresponding finance leasing
liabulity 15 reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are expensed as part of finance costs

The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance
outstanding and 1s charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease

All other leases are treated as operating leases Payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term Associated costs, such as maintenance and
insurance, are expensed as imncurred
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3.13. Impairment testing

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows {cash-generanng unis}  As a result, some assers are tested mdividually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generaung unit level Goodwall 15 allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from synergtes of the telated business combination and
represent the lowest level wathun the Group at which management monutors goodwall

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impatrment at least annually All
other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impatrment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impatrment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's ot cash-generaung utut's carrying
amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, which 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use
To determune the value-in-use, management esumates expected future cash flows from each cash-
generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate 1o order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows The data used for impairment testung procedures are directly binked to the Group's latest approved
budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future reorgamsations and asset enhancements
Discount factors are deterrmined individually for each cash generaung umit and reflect their respective risk
profiles as assessed by management

Impattrment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the catrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
that cash-generaung unit Any remaming inparment loss 1s charged pro rata to the other assets i the
cash-generating unit With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for mndications
that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist

3.14. Financlal Instruments

Financtal assets and financial liabilies are recogrused when the Group becomes a party to the contracmal
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred

A financial liability 1s derecogmuised when 1t 1s extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires

Financial assets and financal habilines are measured tninally at fair value plus transactions costs Financial
assets and financial habilities are measured subsequently as described below

Financial assets
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets othet than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classtfied into the following categories upon 1niual recognition

loans and recewvables,

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
held to maturity investments, and
available-for-sale financial assets

* & & B

The category determunes subsequent measurement and whether any resultng income and expense 15
recogmsed mn profit or loss ot 1n other comprehensive income

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for
impatrment at least at each reportng date Financial assets are impaired when there 15 any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impaired Different cnteria to determine
unpairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below
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Financial instruments (continued)

All ncome and expenses telating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within "finance costs’ or 'finance income', except for impatrment of trade recervables which 1s presented
within 'admunistrative expenses'

The Group considers that the only categories of financial assets which 1t uses are loans and receivables
along with cash and cash equivalents These are accounted for as follows

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an actve market After initial recognition these are measured ar amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment Discounting 1s omutted where the effect of
discounting 1s tmmatetial The Group's cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other recetvables fall
into this category of finanaal instruments

Indwidually significant recervables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other
objectuve evidence 1s received that a specific counterpacty will default Recevables that are not considered
to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment n groups, which are determuned by reference to
the industry and regon of a counterparty and other available features of shared credit risk charactersstics
The petcentage of the write down 1s then based on recent historical counterparty default rates for each
idenufied group Impairment of trade receivables are presented within 'administrative expenses’

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term,
hughly iquid investments that are readily convertible nto known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial iabilines include trade and other payables and borrowings

Al interest-related charges and, 1f applicable, changes m an mnstrument’s fair value that are reported in
profit or loss are included within 'finance costs' or 'finance income’

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are mtially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective mnterest rate method

Borrowings

Borrowings are mmtally recogmised at fair value plus any transaction costs associated with the 1ssue of the
relevant financial liability Subsequent to initial measurement, borrowings are measured at amortised cost
with the borrowmng costs being accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the
effective interest rate method At the balance sheet date accrued interest 1s recorded separately from the
assoctated borrowings within current liabilines

3.15. Work In progress

Work 1n progress is valued on the basis of direct costs plus attributable overheads based on normal levels
of activity Proviston 1s made for any foreseeable losses where appropriate No element of profit is
included 1 the valuation of wotk 1n progress
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3.16. Income taxes

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax not recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

The tax payable in respect of the year 15 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported mn the income statement because it excludes ttems of income or expense that are
taxable or deductble in other years and it futther excludes items that are never taxable or deductuble The
Group’s kability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the reporung date

Deferred tax 15 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences berween the carrying amounts
of assets and habilities 1n the financial statements and the cotresponding tax bases used 1n the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognused for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that 1t 15 probable that taxable profits wall be available agamst which deductble
temporary differences can be utiised Such assets and habilities are not recogrused if the temporary
difference anses from initial recognition of goodwill or from the 1mtial recognitton of other assets and
liabihties (other than i 2 business combination) 1n a transaction that affects netther the tax profit nor the
accounting profit

Deferred tax habiities are recogrused for taxable temporary differences arnsing on investments i
subsidianes, associates, and interests 1n joint ventures, except where the Group 15 able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse 1n the
foreseeable future The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporung date

Deferred tax 1s calculated, without discounting, based on the laws enacted or substantially enacted by the
reporting date and at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Labdity 1s settled or
the asset 1s reahsed Deferred 1ax 15 charged or credited i the income statement except when 1t relates to
ttems chatged or credited directly to other comprehensive imcome ot equity, in which case the deferred tax
15 also dealt with in other comprehensive mcome or equity

3.17. Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the norrunal value of shares that have been tssued

Retained earmings include 2ll current and prior period retaned profits

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are mcluded 1n "other Liabilities” when the dividends
have been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date
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3.18. Employee benefits

The Group provides post employment benefits through defined benefit plans as well as vanious defined
contribution plans

Defined benefit schemes
The defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the
group, it a separate trustee-administered fund

The lhiability recognised 1n the balance sheet for defined benefit plans 15 the present value of the defined
benefit obligation (DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets

The Group estimates the DBO annually using the projected unit method wath the assistance of
independent actuanes The esumate of its post-retirement benefit obligations 1s based on standard rates of
inflavon and mortality Tt also takes into account the Group's specific anticipation of future salary
increases Discount factors are determuned close to each year-end by reference to high quality corporate
bonds that are denomunated 1n the currency i which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to
maturity approxtmaung to the terms of the related pension liabihty

Actuantal gains and losses are recognised 1n full 1n the petiod 1n which they occur through the statement of
comprehenstve income  Past service costs are recognised immediately mn profit or loss, unless the changes
to the penston plan are conditional on the employees rematning i service for a speafied period of tme
(the vesung peniod) In this case, the past service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period

The interest cost and the expected return on assets ate shown as a net amount withun esther finance
mcome or finance costs, as appropriate

Defined benefit schemes treated as money purchase schemes

Employees of NPS Humber Limited, NPS Barnsley Limited and Bamsley Norse Limited are members of
various local government penston schemes  Under the terms of the relevant transfer agreements, the
actuanal nisks assoctated with the scheme remain wath the relevant Council  The conttiburtons paid by
these companies are set in relation to the current service period only and as such the group has accounted
for the contributions to these schemes as tf they were contnbutions to a defined contrbunon scheme

Defined contribution schemes
Contnbuuons to defined contmbution schemes are charged to profit and loss when they fall due on an
accruals basis

Short term employee benefits

Shott-term employee benefits, mcluding holiday enntlement, are current liabihities included 1n ‘accruals and
deferred mcome', measured at the undiscounted amount that the Group expects to pay as a result of the
unused enutlement
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3.19. Accounting Judgements and estimates

To be able to prepare accounts according to generally accepted accountng principles, management must
make esnmates and assumptions that affect the asset and hability items and revenue and expense amounts
recorded 1n the financial statements These esumates are based on hustornical expertence and varnious other
assumptions that management and the Board of directors believe are reasonable under the circumstances
The results of this form the basis for making judgements about the carrying value of assets and liabilites
that are not readily available from other sources

The actual results are likely to differ from the judgements, estinates and assumptions made by
management, and will seldom equal the esumated results

Information about the stgnificant judgements, esumates and assumptions that have the most significant
effect on the recognition and measurement of assets, habilities, income and expenses are discussed below

Critical judgements

Revenue and profit on property consultancy contracts

In respect of certain property consultancy services the stage of complenon of any contract 1s assessed by
management by taking into consideranon all tnformauon available at the reporting date In this process
management carrtes out significant judgements about rmulestones, actual wortk performed and the
estimated costs to complete the wotk Further informaton on the Group's accounung policy for these
contracts 1s provided i note 37 |

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method to determune the appropriate amount to recognise
in a given pertod The stage of completion 1s measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the reporting date as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract

Critical estimates

Imparrment of work 1n progress

In assessing whether work in progress 1s impaired, estimates are made of future sales revenue, tumung and |

costs The Group has controls m place to ensure that esumates of sales revenue are consistent, and \

external valuatons are used where appropriate |
I
!
|

Imparirment

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impatrment, i accordance with the
accounting policy previously stated The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations require the use of estimates Further
details of the esumates used are set out 10 note 11

Business combinatons and intangible assets

On mitial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the acquired business and the consideration paid for
them are included 1n the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair values In measunng fair
value, management uses estimates of future cash flows and discount rates Any subsequent change in
these estinates would affect the amount of goodwill «f the change qualifies as a measurement peniod
adjustment Any other change would be recognised in the mncome statement mn the subsequent period
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Accounting judgements and estimates (continued)

Defined benefit hability

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are deterrmined on an
actuarial basts using a number of assumptions The assumptions used in determimng the net cost/income
for pensions include the discount rate

Any changes 1n these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of pension obligattons The Group
deterrrunes the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year This 1s the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be required to settle the
penston obligattons In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the interest rates
of huigh-quality corporate bonds that are denominated 1n the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension Liabihity

Other key assumptions for penston obligations are based in part on current market condinons Additional
informaton, including sensitivity analysis, 1s disclosed in note 25

Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the probability of future taxable income 1n which deferred tax assets can be utilised 15
based on the Group's latest approved budget forecast, which 1s adjusted for significant non-taxable
income and expenses and specific limus to the use of any unused tax loss or credit If a positive forecast
of taxable income indicates the probable use of 2 deferred tax asset, especially when 1t can be unlised
without a tme lumut, that deferred tax asset 1s usually recognised i full The recognition of deferred tax
assets that are subject to certain legal or economic hmuts or uncertainties 1s assessed individually by
management based on the specific facts and arcumstances

3.20. Adoption of new and revised International Financlal Reporting Standards
At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to extstng standards have been published but are not yet effecnve, and have not been
adopted early by the Group

Management antcipates that all of the pronouncements will be adopted n the Group's accounting policy
for the first peniod beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations,
which have not been applied in these financial statements, were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

. IFRS 7 "Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — "Transfers of Financtal Assets" - effectuve financial
years commencing on or after 1 July 2011,

»  TAS 12 "Amendments to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax — Recovery of Underlying Assets” - effective
financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2012

The directors are of the opimon that the above standards wall not have a material financial impact on the
results of the Group
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Revenue

The following sigmificant categories of revenue were recognised m the year

27

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Property consultancy and design services 76,765 76,765
76,765 76,765
All revenue has ansen in the United Kingdom
Group operating (loss)/profit
Group operating (loss)/profit 1s stated after charging/(credinng)
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Amortsation of mntangible assets 393 436
Impairment of goodwill - 50
Depteciation of owned propetty, plant and equapment 607 919
Deprectanion of property, plant and equpment held under finance leases
and hire purchase agreements 61 185
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 10
Operaung lease costs
- Plant and equipment 493 280
- Land and buldings 1,745 1,957
Auditor's remuneration - audit of the financtal statements 10 6
Auditor's remuneration - other fees 124 114
Non-recurnng items within cost of sales:
- Credit 1n respect of past service costs (note 6) - (8,441)
- Redundancy costs 1,150 562
2012 2011
L£'000 £000
Auditor's rernuneranon - other fees
- Statutory audit of subsidianes 67 60
- Taxation services 42 38
- Accountancy advisory services 15 12
- Advisory and business support - 4
124 114
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Particulars of employees
The average number of staff employed by the group durnng the financial year amounted to
2012 2011
Number Number
Architectural services 412 391
Building surveymng group 505 479
Business support 213 209
Estates 128 112
CDM and project management 66 14
INPS Norwich 43 43
1,367 1,248
The agpregate payroll costs of the above were
2012 2011
£'000 L£'000
Wages and salarzes 39,972 38,373
Social secunity costs 3,138 3,152
Penston costs - Defined benefit schemes {note 25) 4,799 4,191)
- Defined contnbution schemes (note 25) 1,061 1,016
48,970 38,350

Pension costs are amounts charged/(credited) to operaung profit and do not include amounts charged to

finance costs (note 9) and amounts recognised withun other comprehensive income

‘The prior year defined benefit pension credit included a credit of £8,441,000 in respect of past service

costs as a result of the change from RPI to CPI to determine the level of future statutory pension

INCreascs

In addition to the payroll costs disclosed above, further costs amounung to /1,150,000 (2011 - £562,000)

have been mncurred in respect of redundancy costs in the year




NPS Property Consultants Limited 29
Financlal statements for the yoar ended 31 January 2012
Diractors
Remuneratton 1n respect of directors was as follows
2012 201
£'000 £000
Emoluments recetvable 157 157
The number of directors who accrued benefits under group pension schemes was as follows
2012 2011
Number Number
Defined benefit schemes 2 2
Finance Income
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Bank interest recetvable 7 13
Other mterest recetvable 7 14
14 27
Finance costs
2012 2011
L'000 L1000
Interest payable on bank botrowang and sumular charges 113 132
Net finance charge i respect of defined benefit pension schemes (note 25) 144 383
257 515
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Taxation
(a) Analysis of (credit)/charge 1n the year
2012 2011

£'000 £000
Current tax
In respect of the year
Corporation tax based on the results for the year (423) 93
Adjustments 1n relation to prior years (8) 19
Total current tax (431) 112
Deferred tax
Retirement benefit obhigation (note 16) 39 2238
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences {note 16) 109 9
Adjustments i relation to prior years (note 106) 9 {28)
Total deferred tax 157 2,219
Total tax (credit)/ charge for the year (note 10(b)) (274) 2,331

(b) Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge

The taxation assessed for the year 1s lugher (2011 - lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 26% (2011 - 28%) The charge 1s affected by a number of factors in addition to the standard UK

rate The differences are explamed as follows

2012 2011

£'000 £000

{(Loss)/profit before tax (1,031) 8,554
(Loss)/profit befote tax multiphied by standard rate of tax (268) 2,395
Expenses not deductble for tax putposes 87 88
Income not taxable (58) (23)
Impact of changes 1n statutory tax rates {36) {120)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 1 9
Total tax (credit)/charge for the year (note 10(a})) (274) 2,331

{¢) Factors affecung furure tax charges

Legislaton to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 25% from 1 Apnl 2012 was included
m the Finance Act 2011 and has since become substanuvely enacted Further reductions to the main rate
are proposed to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014 None of these rate reductions
had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial
statements Deferred tax has been provided for at 25% as this 1s the rate enacted at the balance sheet

date
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Goodwill
£'000
Cost and net book value
At 1 February 2010 4,135
Impairment provision 1n year (50)
At 31 January 2011 4,085
At 31 January 2012 4,085
The goodwill balance 1s summarised by cash generating unit as follows
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 L'000
Hamson Partnership Lirmuted 978 978 978
Barron & Smuth Limited 1 411 411
Robson Liddle Limited 1,437 1,437 1,487
John Packer Associates Lamated 1,259 1,259 1,259
4,085 4,085 4,135

At the date of transition the amount of goodwill was tested for impairment based on conditions at thar
date The forecasts at the transition date showed that no impairment was necessary

The carrying values of the Group’s goodwill balances are reassessed at least annually or whenever events
or changes n circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable If analysis indicates
that the carrying value 1s too hugh, then this 1s reduced to its recoverable amount which 1s the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and 1ts value m use

Value 1n use is calculated using pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets and business
plans covenng a five year period These have been extrapolated for the units remamning useful lives using
the growth rates stared below

The key assurnptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the operating margin, discount
tates and growth rates and these are as set out below

Operating margin Growth rates Discount rates
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
% Yo Yo Yo % % Yo %o %

Hamson Partnership Limuted 11 17 25 2.5 25 25 18 18 18
Barron & Smith Limited 9 25 20 25 25 25 16 16 16
Robson Liddle Limited 15 15 20 25 25 25 14 14 14
John Packer Associates Limited 19 15 20 25 25 25 14 14 14

Operating margins are esttmated by management based on historical trends and market conditions
Discount rates are estimated by management ustng pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the ume value of money and the nsks specific 1o the cash generaung units  The growth rate 1s based on
the average growth rate of the UK economy since the second world war Management constder this to be
a reasonable basts for the estimate of the future growth rate m each of the relevant markets
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12. Other intangible assets
Other
Computer mtangible
software agsets Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2010 1,926 1,101 3,027
Additions 04 - 94
At 31 January 2011 2,020 1,101 3,121
Addinons 229 - 229
Disposals (786) - {(736)
At 31 January 2012 1,463 1,101 2,564
Amortisation
At 1 February 2010 1,183 186 1,369
Charge for the year 250 186 436
At 31 January 2011 1,433 372 1,805
Charge for the year 207 186 393
Disposals (786) - (786)
At 31 January 2012 854 558 1,412
Net book value at 31 January 2012 609 543 1,152
Net bock value at 31 January 2011 587 729 1,316
Net book value at 31 January 2010 743 915 1,658
Computer software 1s amortsed on a straight line basis over its useful economic hfe of five years
Other mtangible assets valuation comprises
Year Carrying Onginal
acquured value valuation UEL*
£'000 £'000 Years
Hamson Partnership - Customer relanonships 2010 355 507 10
Hamson Partnership - Order backlog 2010 - 267 3
Hamson Partnership — Tradename 2010 134 192 10
Hamson Parthership - Technology based asset 2010 54 135 5
543 1,10t

* UEL = original useful economuc hfe

For the valuations above the purchase prce allocanon method was used, which required identification and
fair value esimation of the mdividual intangible assets acquired In order to arnve at an estumate of fair
value, the income approach was used which values the cash flows that the asset might reasonably be

expected to generate
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Property, plant and equipment

Leaseheld Plant & Matoer Computer
property equpment vehicles equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 L£'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 Febrary 2010 1,813 2,058 87 3,830 7,788
Additions 124 302 - 479 905
Disposals - - (2) (1,273) (1,275)
At 31 January 2011 1,937 2,360 85 3,036 7,418
Additions 1 15 - 121 137
Disposals {27) (36) 27 (1,712} (1,802)
At 31 January 2012 1,911 2,339 58 1,445 5,753
Deprecration
At 1 February 2010 543 1,251 39 2,966 4,799
Charge for the year 178 27 11 644 1,104
On disposals - - ) {1,260) (1,262)
At 31 January 2011 721 1,622 48 2,350 4,641
Charge for the year 182 255 8 223 668
On disposals (27) 29 (10) {1,712) (1,778)
At 31 January 2012 876 1,748 46 861 3,531
Net book value at
31 January 2012 1,035 591 12 584 2,222
Net book value at
31 January 2011 1,216 838 37 686 2,777
Net book value at
31 January 2010 1,270 807 48 864 2,989

Included within the net book value above 1s £7,000 (2011 £ 70,000, 2010, £256,000) relating to assets
held under finance leases and hire purchase agreements The depreciation charged to the financial
statements 1n the year i respect of such assets amounted to £61,000 (2011 £185,000, 2010, £194,000)
Finance lease habilities (see note 22) are secured by the related assets held under finance leases
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Investments accounted for using the equity method

Investment
In associates
£'000
Cost and net book value
At 1 February 2010 11
Acquired 1n the year 14
Share of resuit for the financial year 5
At 31 January 2011 30
Share of result for the financal year 6
At 31 January 2012 36
The above investments consist of
Share of gross assets 1,395
Share of gross habihities (1,359
36

Investments in associate companies

The group has a 24% shareholding 1n North Lincolnshire Learning Partnership (PSP) Limited, a company
incorporated in England  The prinapal activity of North Lincolnshire Learning Partnership (PSP)
Limited 1s that of a holding company North Lincolnshire Learning Partnershup (PSP) Luruted owns 80%
of the share captal of Engage North Lincolnshire Linuted, the principal actvity of whuich 1s construction
and civil engineening

The group also has a 35% shareholding 1n Lambeth Learning Partnership (PSP) Limited, a company
incorporated 1n England The principal acuvity of Lambeth Learning Partnership (PSP) Limited 1s that of
a holding company Lambeth Learning Partnership (PSP) Limited owns 80% of the share capital of
Engage Lambeth Limited, the principal activity of which 1s construction and ctvil engineering

The investments are accounted for under the equity method. Both associates have a reporting date of 31
March and have been consolidated based on un-audited management accounts for the period ended 31
January 2012 The most recent audited accounts for North Lincolnshire Learning Partnership (PSP)
Limited and Lambeth Learmng Partnership (PSP) Limited ate for the year ended 31 March 2011

‘The aggregate amounts of certamn financial information of the associates can be summarised as follows

2012 2011 2010

£'000 £000 L1000

Assets 4,343 6,224 1,773
Liabihities (4,216) {6,117) (1,728)
Revenues 32,700 28,216 6,360
Profit 20 28 7
Profit attributable to the Group 6 5 1

The Group has not incurred any contingent labilities or other commitments relating to 1ts investments in
associates
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Deferred taxation

The movement 1n the deferred taxanon asset duning the year was

2012 2011

£'000 £000
Asset brought forward 6,906 9,099
Recognised 1n income statement:
Charge to profit and loss account 1n respect of pension obligation (39 (2,238)
Ongination and reversal of other temporary differences (109) {9
Adjusunent in respect of prior years 9 28
Recognised 1n other comprehensive income.
Deferred tax on actuaral loss for the year 1,823 339
Impact of change 1n tax rates tecognised in other comprehensive
income (484) (313)
Asset carrted forward 8,088 6,906

The group's asset for defetred taxauon consists of the tax effect of temporary differences in respect of

2012 21 2010
£'000 £1000 £'000
Defined benefit pension obligation 7,838 6,539 8,750
Excess of depreciation on fixed assets over taxaton
allowances 181 245 233
Other temporary differences 69 122 116
8,088 6,906 9,099

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable night to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabihties and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority

Inventories
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000
Work 1n progress 429 370 753

429 370 753
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Trade and other recelvables
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000
Trade receivables 10,475 9,541 10,474
Amounts owed by parent and fellow group
undertakings (note 27) 1,634 2,524 2,201
Amounts owed by associate compantes 50 99 96
Amounts recoverable on contracts 3,886 4,416 4,906
Other debtors 368 453 314
Prepayments and accrued mncome 2,414 1,741 2,080
18,877 18,774 20,071

Trade and other receivables are mutally stated at their far value and subsequently measured at amornsed
cost as reduced by approprate allowance or estmated 1rrecoverable amounts The directors consider that

the carrying values of current trade and other recervables approximate therr fair values

Trade and other recervables have been reviewed for ndicators of impairment Certain trade recetvables
were found to be potentially impaired and a provision of £138k (2011 £309k, 2010 {318k) has been

tecorded accordingly

The average credit period taken by customers 1s 50 days (2011 45 days, 2010 50 days)

In additton, some of the unimpaired trade recetvables are past due as at the reporung date The age of

financial assets past due but not impaired 1s as follows

2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000
Not more than three months 785 1,665 1,734
More than three months but not more than six months 1m 122 206
More than six months 1,085 90 387
2,041 1,877 2,327
The movement 1n the provision for impairment of trade receivables 1s as follows
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000
Balance as at 1 February 309 318 241
Charged/(credited) to the mncome statement
- additional provisions 22 83 2t2
- unused amounts reversed (193) (92) (135)
Balance as at 31 January 138 309 318
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Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £'000
Cash at bank and 1n hand 1,501 1,367 797
1,501 1,367 797
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value
Trade and other payables
2012 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £000
Trade creditors 2,625 2,711 3,547
Amounts owed to parent and fellow group undertakings 5,390 5,629 5,027
Other taxauon and social security 3,777 3,144 2,770
Other creditors 1,918 906 967
Accruals and deferred income 9,936 10,005 10,049
23,646 22,395 22,360

Trade and other payables are initially stated at their fair value and subsequently measured at amorused
cost The directors consider that the carrying values of current trade and other payables approximate theur
fair values The average credit pertod taken by the Group on trade payables was 34 days (2011 35 days,

2010 45 days)

Included within other creditors 1s £613k (2011 £641k, 2010 £630k) in respect of outstanding pension

contributions
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Financlal Instruments analysls

Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial postuon relate to the following categonies of
assets and liabilities

Financial assets 2012 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £1000

Loans and recervables
- Trade and other receivables 16,463 17,033 17,991
- Cash and cash equivalents 1,501 1,367 797
17,964 18,400 18,788
Financial habihities 2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 L1000

Financial habilies measured at amortsed cost
Non current

- Borrowings - 400 300
Current

- Borrowmgs 174 417 795

- Trade and other payables 19,869 19,251 19,590

20,043 20,068 21,185

See note 3 14 for a description of the accountung policies for each category of financial instruments The
fair values are presented in the related notes A description of the Group's risk management objectives
and policies for financial nstruments is given m note 24
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Financlal Instruments analysis (continued)
Maturnity of the Groups financial habilines 2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £'000
Due within one year
Trade crediors 2,625 2,711 3,547
Amounts owed to parent and fellow group undertakings 5,390 5,629 5,027
Other creditors 1,918 906 967
Accruals and defertred income 9,936 10,005 10,049
Borrowings 174 417 795
Total due within one year 20,043 19,668 20,385
Due within one to two years
Borrowings - 400 400
Due within two to five years
Borrowings - - 400
20,043 20,068 21,185
The above contractual maturiues reflect the gross cash flows which may differ to the carrying values of
the habilities at the reporting date
Obligations under finance leases
Matunty analysis - mimmum lease payments 2012 2011 2010
£1000 £000 £000
Due within one year 69 91 183
Due within one to two years 39 69 N
Due within two to five years 22 61 130
Miumum lease payments 130 221 404
Less future finance charges {25) (40) (50)
Present value of lease obligations 1065 181 354
Matunty analysis - present value of minimum lease payments
2012 2011 2010
£1000 £1000 £000
Due within one year 55 80 163
Due wiathin one to two years 32 55 80
Due wathin two to five years 18 46 109
105 181 354

The average lease term 1s 3 years (2011 3 years, 2010 3years) Interest rates are fixed at the contract date
All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered 1nto for contingent
rental payments Al lease obligations are denominated 1n Sterling The carrying amount of the Group’s
finance lease liabilines approximates to their farr value The Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessors’ chatges over the assets concerned The average effective mterest rate on finance

leases was 6 0% (2011 6 0%, 2010 5 4%)
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Borrowlings and overdrafts

Bank overdrafts 2012 2011 2010
£'000 £1000 £000

Due within one year 14 17 395
14 17 395

Loan notes 2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £1000

Due within one year 160 400 400
Due withuin one to two years - 400 400
Due within two to five years - - 400
160 800 1,200

The loan notes are redeemable in three equal mstalments on the first, second and third anniversary of the
date of 1ssue Interest 1s payable at a rate of 1% over the base lending rate of Barclays Bank plc

Financial instrument risks
Risk management objectives and policies

The Group 1s exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments The Group's financial assets
and liabilittes by categoty are summarsed 1n note 21

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure 1ts ability to continue as a going concern and to maintamn an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Group comprises equity attributable to equity holders of NPS Property
Consultants Limited consisting of 1ssued ordinary share capital, reserves and retamned earnings (see
consolidated statement of changes 1n equity) and cash and cash equivalents as disclosed 1n note 19

The Group’s overall capital nisk management strategy remains unchanged from previous years

Financial risk management

Financtal risk management 1s an integral part of the way the Group 1s managed In the course of its
business, the Group 1s exposed primanly to interest rate nisk, credit risk and iquidity sk The overall aim
of the Group’s financial risk management policies 15 to minumise potential adverse effects on financial
performance and net assets

Management manages the principal financial risks within policies and operating parameters approved by
the Board of directors

Foreign currency risk

The Group does not have significant foreign currency transactions and exposure to foreign currency risk
15 therefore munimal Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any sensitivity analysis 1n
respect of currency risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate sk does not arise on the Group’s obligations under finance leases as interest rates are fixed
at the start of the lease Interest rate risk anses on the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings A 1% ncrease in the Bank of England base rate would not result in a significant increase in
the Group’s finance cost
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Credit risk
Exposure to credit nisk 1s imited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognised at the reporting
date, namely cash and cash equivalents and wrade and other recetvables

The Group continuously momntors defaults of customers and other counterparues, identified exther
individually or by group, and mcorporates this information into 1ts credit nisk controls Where avatlable at
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or teports on customers and other counterparties are obtained
and used The Group’s policy 1s to deal only with creditworthy counterpatties

The Group’s management considers that all financtal assets that are not impaired for each of the reporang
dates under review are of good credit quality, including those that are past due  An analysis of amounts
that are past due but not impaired 1s shown 1n note 18

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements

The credit nisk for hquid funds and other short-term financial assets 1s considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings

The Greup has no significant concentration of credit nisk in respect of amounts due from trade recervable
balances at the reporung date, with exposure spread over a number of customers and across the Group’s
operations

Liquidity risk

The Group manages uts kquidity needs by carefully monttoting all cash ocutflows due 1n day-to-day
business Liquidity needs are monitored i various ime bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as
well as on the basis of a rolling monthly projection

The Group mantains cash to meet 1ts iquidity requirements on 2 weekly basts Funding un regards to
long-term hquidity needs 1s addinonally secured by an adequate amount of commutted credit facilies

Pensions and employee benefit obligations

The labilittes recognised for pensions and other employee remuneration m the balance sheet consist of
the following amounts

2012 2011 2010
£'000 £000 £000
Non current
Defined benefit plans 31,353 24218 31,251
Current
Other pension obligations {within other creditors) 613 641 630
Other short term employee obligations {(within accruals) 419 960 1,039
1,032 1,601 1,669

Other penston obligations represent pension contrtbuttons that had not been paid at the balance sheet
date Other short-term employee obhigations anse mainly from accrued holiday enntlement at the
reporting date
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Penslons and employee benefit obligations {continued)

Defined benefit pension schemes
The group 1s a participating employer 1n a number of mult-employer Local Government Penston
Schemes, the main one being the Norfolk Pension Fund

The calculations for the disclosures are based on a full actuanal valuation of the schemes as at 31 March
2010 updated to 31 January 2012 by a quahfied independent actuary

‘The main assumptons used by the actuary to calculate scheme habilities of the Group were

2012 2011 2010

% %o %
Rate of increase in salaries 3e 41 40
Rate of increase in pensions 1n payment 23 31 35
Discount rate 49 56 55
Inflavon assumption 2.3 31 35

The post retirement mortality assumptions used to value the benefit obligation at the year end are based
on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements from 2007 i line with the Medium Cohort and a 1% per
annum underpin  Based on these the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows

2012 2012 2011 2011

Males Females Males Females
Current pensioners {years) 212 234 212 234
Future penstoners (years) 23.6 258 236 258

These assumptions were developed by management under consideration of expert advice provided by
independent actuarial appratsers These assumptions have led to the amounts determined as the Group's
defined benefit obhgations for the reporting periods under review and should be regarded as
management's best estmate However, the actual outcome may vary Changes in market conditions that
result 1n changes in the net discount rate {essentially the difference berween the discount rate and the
assumed rates of mcrease n salaries, deferred penston revaluation or penstons 1n payment) can have a
significant impact on the value of the liabilittes reported There 1s also uncertainty around life expectancy
of the UK population  The value of cutrent and future pension benefits will depend on how long they are
assumed to be in payment
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Penslons and employee benefit obligations (continued)
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return, the present value of the scheme
liabilities and the resulting deficit are
2012 2011 2010
Long-term Long- Long-
rate of term rate term rate
return of return of return
expected Value  expected Value  expected Value
% £'000 %o £000 % £1000
Equites 61 81,244 75 73,691 77 63,157
Bonds 38 24,364 50 17,891 50 16,281
Property 41 12,346 55 8,852 57 8,195
Cash 32 6,373 406 6,183 48 6,951
Total fair value of assets 124,327 106,617 94,584
Present value of scheme lhabilities (155,680) {130,835) (125,835)
Deficit in the scheme (31,353) (24,218) {31,251)

The actual return on scheme assets in the year was £1,895,000 (2011 £8,074,000, 2010 £13,915,000)

The expected rate of return on scheme assets are based on a weighted average of the expected returns on
the various assets held in the plan, and include an analysis of hustorical returns and predicuions about

future returns

An analysis of the movement 1n the deficit during the year 1s shown below

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
At 1 February 2011 (24,218) (31,251)
Imital recognition of the IAS 19 defined benefit deficit (1,955) -
Total operating - (charge)/credit (4,799) 4,191
Total finance charge (144) {383)
Actuaral losses (5,337) (1,255)
Contnbutions by the Group 5,100 4,480
At 31 January 2012 (31,353) (24,218)

The ininal recognition of the IAS 19 defined benefit pension deficit relates to the employees of NPS
London Liruted that are members of the Notfolk Pension Fund At the end of the prior financial year

the transfer value in respect of these employees had not been agreed and therefore the actuary was unable

to allocate the assets and labilities pertaining to these employees Conwubunons to this scheme were
therefore treated as 1f they were contribunons to a defined contnbution scheme The allocation of assets
and labilites took place n the current year at which pont the defined benefit pension deficit was

recognised tn the financial statements
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Penslons and employee benefit obligations (continued)

An analysts of the defined benefit cost follows

Analysis of the amount (charged)/credited to operanng (loss)/profit:

2012 201
£1000 £'000
Current service cost (4,307) 4,157)
Past service {cost}/credit (190) 8,441
Losses on settlements and curtailments (302) {93)
Total operaung (charge}/credit (4,799) 4191
Analysis of the amount charged to finance costs:
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Expected return on assets i the scheme 7,610 6,606
Interest on penston scheme labilities (7,754) (6,989
Total finance charge (note 9) {144) (383)
Analysis of the amount recognised 1n other comprehensive income:
2012 201
£'000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets (5,715) 1,468
Experience losses ansing on scheme habilities (58) (8,149
Effect on changes 1n assumptions in respect of schemne liabilities 436 5,426
Inittal recogrution of TAS 19 defined benefit pension deficit (1,955) -
Actuaral loss recogmised in other comprehensive mncome (7,292) (1,255)
A history of experience gains and losses 1s shown below
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Dufference between the expected
and actual return on scheme assets
- amount {{7000) {5,715) 1,468 9,104 (19,710) {(5,923)
- % of scheme assets (5) 1 10 (30} (8)
Experience adjustments on
scheme ltabilities
- amount (£000) (58) (8,149) - 4,518 (5,893
- % of the present value of
scheme habilities - (6) - 5 (0)
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Penslons and employee benefit obligations (continued)
Analysis of changes in the fair value of the scheme assets dunng the year
2012 2011
£'000 L7000
Faur value of scheme assets at the beginning of the year 106,617 04,584
On mital recogmtion of defined benefit scheme 12,630 .
Expected return on scheme assets 7,610 6,606
Actuartal (Josses)/gains (5,715) 1,468
Contnbutions by employers 5,100 4480
Contributions by members 1,870 1,933
Benefits pad (3,785) (2,454)
Fair value of the scheme assets at the end of the year 124,327 106,617
Analysis of changes in the present value of the scheme habilities during the year
2012 2011
£'000 L1000
Present value of scheme liabilities at the start of the year 130,835 125,835
On 1utial recogmnon of defined benefit scheme 14,585 -
Total operaung charge/(credtt) 4,799 (4,191)
Interest cost 7,754 6,989
Contributions by members 1,870 1,933
Benefits patd (3,785) {2,454)
Actuarial (gains)/losses (378) 2,723
Present value of the scheme liabilines at the end of the year 155,680 130,835
History of scheme assets, habilities and net deficit position
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£'000  ['000 £000 £/000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 124,327 106,617 94,584 66,806 77,661
Present value of scheme liabilities at end of
year (155,680) (130,835) (125835) (88,844)  (91,082)
Net deficit in the plan at end of year (31,353)  (24,218) (31,251)  (22,038)  (13,421)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised tn other comprehensive income at 31

January 2012 was 2 net loss of £25,778,000 (2011 net loss of £18,486,000)
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Pensions and employee benefit obligations (continued)

Future funding obligation
The directors anticipate that contnibutions of approximately £5,018,000 (2011 4,688,000 ) will be paid 1n
the year to 31 January 2013

Sensitvity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to changes m principal actuarial assumptions 1s shown
below

Chaﬂge in Increase in

assumption Defiait

£000

Rate of increase in salartes +0 5% 5,140
Rate of increase 1n penstons in payment +0 5% 11,025
Discount rate -0 5% 16,993
Life expectancy +1 year 4,519

Defined contribution pension schemes

The group opetates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for qualifying
employees The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the group 1n funds controlled by
the scheme providers

The Group also makes contributions to a number of local government defined benefit pension schemes
which are accounted for as if they are defined contributton schemes

During the year the group paid contributions of £ 1,061,000 (2011 - £1,016,000) to defined contribution
schemes
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Operating lease and capital commitments

Operating lease commitments
At 31 January 2012 the Group's future minimum operating lease payments are as follows

2012 2011
Assets Assets
other than other than
Land and land and Land and land and
Buildings buildings buildings buildings

£'000 £'000 L1000 £'000
Within 1 year 1,740 266 1,908 299
Within 2 to 5 yeats 6,347 M 6,726 364
After more than 5 years 5,247 - 6,575 -
13,334 737 15,209 663

Lease payments recognised as an expense during the penod amount to £ 2,238,000 (2011 - £2,237,000)
This amount consists of mummum lease payments These operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the group for certamn of its office properties and the hire of vehicles and other equipment
No sublease payments or contingent rent payments were made or recetved No sublease income 1s
expected as all assets held under lease agreements are used exclusively by the Group

Capital commitments
At the year end the group was commutted to further caprtal expenditure of £164,000 (2011 £Nul)

Related party transactions

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management are the directors of NPS Propetty Consultants Luruted along with certamn execuuve
directors of other group compames Key management personnel remuneration mcludes the following
expenses

2012 2011

£'000 £000

Short term employee benefits 249 249
Post employment benefits - contributions to defined benefit pension plans 37 45
Total remuneraticn 286 294

There were no other transactions with key management personnel in etther the current or preceding year
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Related party transactions {continued)

Transactions with ultimate controlling party and other group companies
The group had the following transactions 1n the normal course of trade with the ultimate controlling
party, Norfolk County Council and other companies within the Norse Group

2012 Sales Purchases Debtor Creditor

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'600
Notfolk County Council 10,349 1,368 1,222 3,421
Norse Commercial Services Limuted 641 556 216 1,426
GYB Services Limited - - 24 -
Suffolk Coastal Services Limited 17 114 - -
Waveney Norse Limited 3 - - -
Eventguard Lunited - - 15 -
Devon Notse Limited 4 - 2 -
Norfolk Environmental Waste Services 127 4 - 543
Norse Care Limited 2n - 205 -
2011 Sales Purchases Debtor Creditor

£°000 /000 1000 £1000
Notfolk County Council 12,801 1,526 2,249 5,020
Norse Commercial Services Limited 3N 168 146 52
GYB Services Limited 7 - 32 -
Suffolk Coastal Services Limited - 131 - 14
Waveney Norse Limited 12 - - -
Norfolk Environmental Waste Services 278 3 97 543

In addinon the group invests cash with Norfolk County Council on a commercial basis  The amount
invested at 31 January 2012 was £1,307,000 (2011 - £1,044,000)

Non-controlling interests

2012 2011

£'000 £000
At 1 February 2011 (255) {436)
Profit attributable to non-controlling mterest 97 430
Other comprehensive ncome attributable to non-controlling interest (543) (249)

At 31 January 2012 (701) (255)
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Share capital

Authonsed share capital

2012 2011
£'000 £000
2,542,968 Ordinary shares of £1 each 2,543 2,543
Allotted, called up and fully paid
2012 2011
Number £'000 Number £'000
Ordinary shares of [1 each 2,542,968 2,543 2,542,968 2,543

Notes to the statement of cash flows

The following non-cash flow adjustments and adjustments for changes in working capital have been made

to the result before tax to arrive at operaung cash flow

Adjustments
2012 2011

£'000 £000
Amnortisation and goodwill inparrment 393 486
Deprecation 668 1,104
Loss on disposal of propetty, plant and equipment 4 10
Fmance mcome (14) (27)
Finance costs 113 132
Finance costs 1n respect of defined benefit penston scheme 144 383
Current and past service costs 1n respect of defined benefit pension
scheme 4,799 {4,191)
Shate of profit from equty accounted investments {6) (5)
Reduction 1n deferred consideration {loan notes) (222) -
Total adjustments 5,879 (2,108)
Net changes in working capltal

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Change m inventories (59 383
Change in trade and other recetvables (103) 1,297
Change in trade and other payables 1,233 35
Total changes 1 working capital 1,071 1,715

Ultimate controlling undertaking

The ulumate parent undertaking 1s Norse Group Limited and consohdated financial statements for this

group are avallable from Compantes House, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ

The ultinate controlling party 1s Notfolk County Council by its ownership of 100% of the ordinary share

capatal of Norse Group Limuted
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First time adoption of IFRS

These are the Group's first consolidated financral statements prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) The date of transition to IFRS 1s 1 February 2010

The Group's IFRS accounting policies presented in note 3 have been applied in prepaning the financial
statements for the year ended 31 January 2012, the comparative information and the opening balance
sheet at the date of transition

The Group has applied IFRS 1 Furst-ume Adoption of International Financtal Reporting Standards m
preparing these first IFRS consolidated financial statements The effects of the transiion to IFRS on
equity, total comprehensive mcome and reported cash flows are presented 1n this section and are further
explained 1n the notes that accompany the tables

32.1. First time adoption exemptions applied

Upon transttion, IFRS 1 permuts certan exemptions from full retrospective application The Group has
applied the mandatory exceptions and certam optional exemptions The exemptions adopted by the
Group are set out below

Mandatory exceptions adopted by the Group

e  Fmancal assets and liabilities that had been de-recognised before 1 February 2010 under previous
GAAP have not been recognised under IFRS

®  The Group has used estimates under IFRS that are consistent with those applied under previous
GAAP (with adjustment for accounting policy differences) unless there 1s objective evidence those
estimates were 10 €rror

Optional exceptions adopted by the Group

e  The Group has elected to apply to apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations retrospectively to one
business combination that occurred before the date of transinon (1 February 2010)  For all other
business combimations IFRS 3 has not been applied retrospectvely See note 32 5a for an
explanation of the effect of the exemption

e The Group has elected to use facts and circumstances exisung at the date of transition to determine
whether an arrangement contains a lease  No such assessment was done under previous GAAP

e The Group has elected to recognise all cumulative actuanal gains and losses for 1ts defined benefit
plans at the date of transition
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32.2. Reconclliation of equity

59

Equuty at the date of transition and at 31 January 2011 can be reconciled to the amounts reported under

previous GAAP as follows

1 February 2019 31 January 2011
Previous Eifect of Previous Effect of
GAAP transition IFRS GAAP transition IFRS
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Goodwill 4,896 @61 4135 4,549 (464) 4,085
Other ntangible assets - 1,658 1,658 - 1,316 1,316
Property plant and equipment 3,732 (743) 2,989 3,364 (587) 2,777
Investments accounted for using
the equity method 11 - 1 30 - 30
Deferred tax asset 314 8,785 9,099 305 6,601 6,906
Non-current assets 8,953 8,939 17,892 8,248 6,866 15,114
Current assets
Inventories 753 - 753 370 - 370
Trade and other receivables 20,071 - 20,071 18,774 - 18,774
Current tax assets - - - 281 - 281
Cash and cash equivalents 797 - 797 1,367 - 1,367
Current assets 21,621 - 21,621 20,792 - 20,792
Total assets 30,574 8,939 39,513 29,040 0,866 35,906
Current habilities
Trade and other payables (21,321) (1,039  (22,360) (21,435) (960)  (22,395)
Current tax habilities (652) - {652) - - -
Obliganons under finance leases (165) - (165) (80) - (80)
Borrowings and overdrafts (795) - (795) 17 - 417
Curtent labilities (22,933)___(1,039) _ (23,972) (21,932 (960)  (22,892)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings and overdrafts (800) - (800) (400) - (400)
Obligations under finance leases (189) - (189) (101) - (101)
Renrement Benefit Obligations (22,501) (8,750) (31,251 (17,679 {6,539) (24,218)
Non-current lizbilittes T (23490) _ (8.750)  (32,240)) (18180)  (6,539)  (24,719)
Total habilities (46,423) (9,789)  (66,212) (40,112) (7,499  (47,611)
Net habilities (15,849) (850) (16,699  (11,072) (633)  (11,705)
Equity
Share capital 2,543 ; 2,543 2,543 ; 2,543
Retaned earnings (17,956) (850) (18,806)  (13,360) (633)  (13,993)

{15,413) {850y (16,263  (10,817) (633)  (11,450)
Non-controlling interests (436) - (436) (255) - (255)
Total equity {15,840 8500 (16,699 (11,072 {633) (11,705
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Reconclliation of equity (continued)

The total effect on retatned eatnings 1s further analysed as follows

Note 1 February 31 January

2010 2011

£'000 £'600

Expense of costs of Acquisiion (60) (60)

Amottisation of other intangible assets (186) (372)
Additonal goodwill in respect of deferred tax recognised

on intangible assets acquired 1n a business combmation 308 308

Amortsatnon of goodwill 92 356

Reduction 1n deferred consideration - 83

Impatrment of goodwill - (50

Recognition of holiday pay accrual (1,039 960

Deferred tax adjustments 35 62

Effect of transition to IFRS (850) (633)
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32.3. Reconclliation of total comprehensive income
Total comprehenstve income for the reporting period ended 31 January 2011 can be reconciled to the
amounts reported under previous GAAP as follows
Previous  Effect of
GAAP Transition IFRS

£'000 £'000 £'000
Group revenue 76,765 - 76,765
Cost of sales (48,875) 79 (48,796)
Gross profit 27,890 79 27,969
Admustrative expenses (19,509) 111 (19,398)
Other operating mncome 466 - 40606
Group operating profit 8,847 190 9,037
Share of profit from equity accounted investments 5 - 5
Profit before financing 8,852 190 9,042
Finance mcome 27 - 27
Finance costs (515) - (515)
Profit before taxation 8,364 190 8,554
Taxation (2,358) 27 (2,331)
Profit for the year 6,006 217 6,223
Other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss 1n respect of defined benefit pension scheme (1,255) - (1,255)
Deferred tax 1n respect of defined benefit pension scheme 33 - 339
Movement in deferred tax asset on pension scheme ansing from
change 1n rates (313) (313)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,777 217 4,994
Total comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to
Non-controlling interests 181 - 181
Owners of the patent ) 4,596 217 4813

4,771 217 4,994
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32.4. Presentation differences

Certain presentauon differences berween previous GAAP and IFRS have no impact on reported profit or
total equity For example, certain assets and habilities have been reclassified into another ine item under
IFRS at the date of transiton  The most significant of these re-classifications are noted below

32.5. Notes to the reconciliations

a. Goodwill and business combinations

Hamson Partnership Timited
The group has elected apply IFRS3 '‘Business Combinauons' {revised 2008) to the acquisition of Hamson

Partnership Limited which took place on 31 Match 2009, prior to the date of transition

In accordance with IFRS 3 (revised) costs of £60,000 associated with the acquisinon of Hamson
Partnership Limited, which were included within goodwill under UK GAAP, have been excluded from
goodwill under IFRS Retained earnings have also been reduced by this amount

IFRS 3 (revised) requires that intangible assets acquired are recognised separately from goodwill The
mntangible assets separated out from goodwill m respect of the acquisiion of Hamson Partnership Limuted
amounted to £1,101,000 Amortisation of £186,000 relates to the period from acquisition to the date of
transion (retained earnings at the date of acquisiion have been reduced by this amount) Accordingly,
'other intangtble assets' of £915,000 were recogrused at the date of transiion Further amorusation of
£186,000 has been charged to administrative expenses in the year to 31 January 2011 As a result the
carrying value of 'other intangible assets’ at 31 January 2011 was £729,000

Goodwill is not amortised under IFRS  As a result, the amortisation of goodwll of £92,000 recorded
under UK GAAP at the date of transiion was reversed with a corresponding increase 1n retained reserves
The amorusation charge for the year ended 31 January 2011 of £87,000 has also been reversed wath a
corresponding reduction in administrative expenses for that year

During the year ended 31 January 2011, there was a reduction of £83k in contingent consideranon due on
the acquisition of Hamson Partnership  Under TFRS this 1s credited to the income statement rather than
goodwill Accordingly, goodwill at 31 January 2011 has increased by £83k with a corresponding reduction
m administrauve expenses for the year

A deferred tax hability of £308,000 was recognised on acqusition 1n respect of separately identifiable
mntangible assets with goodwill arising on acquisition increasing by the same amount The deferred tax
hability at the date of wransition had reduced to £256,000 with a corresponding increase of £32,000 in
tetained earnings at that date




NPS Property Consultants Limited 55
Financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2012

Goodwill and business combinations (continued)

Ovther business combinations

For all business combinations that occurred before 31 March 2009, the Group has elected to not restate
these 1n accordance with IFRS3  The carrymg amount of goodwill has not been adjusted for intangible
assets subsumed within goodwill or for intangible assets that do not qualify for recognitton under IFRS
The amount of goodwill, at the date of transition, relating to the following cash-genetating units 1s
disclosed in note 11 to the financal statements

o  Barron & Smuth Limited
. Robson Liddle Limited
®  John Packer Assocates Lumited

At the date of transition this goodwall was tested for impatrment based on cash flow forecasts made at
that date  No impairment was identified The amount of goodwill recognised upon transitton to IFRS 1s
therefore the carrying amount under UK GAAP at 1 February 2010

Goodwill 1s not amortised under IFRS and 1s mstead subject to an annual impairment revatew As a
result, the amortisation of goodwill of £177,000 recorded under UK GAAP was reversed 1n the
reconctliation to IFRS wath a corresponding reduction m administrative expenses fot the year ended 31
January 2011 As a result of the annual impairment review an impatrment charge of £50,000 was
recognised within admimstrative expenses

b. Other intangible assets - computer software

IAS 38 'Intangible Assets' requites computer software which 1s not an ntegral part of hardware to be
treated separately as an intangible asset rather than included wathin tangible fixed assets as under UK
GAAP This has resulted in a re-classification of £743,000 in the balance sheet at the transitionat date and
a re-classification of £587k in the balance sheet at 31 January 2011

c. Amortisation

For the year ended 31 January 2011 there 15 a net reducton 1 amortisation expenses of £78,000 This
conststs of ncreased amortisation of £186,000 1n respect of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and a reduction i goodwill amortisation of £264,000

d. Other employee benefit liabilities

Under IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' the group 1s required to accrue for all short term accumulating
compensated absences such as holiday entitlement earned but not taken at the balance sheet date The
impact of this 1s to mcrease accruals and deferred mcome by £1,039,000 at the date of transitton and by
£960,000 at 31 January 2011 There 1s a credit of £79,000 to the ncome statement for the year ended 31
January 2011 reflecting the reduction in the accrual at that year end
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Notes to the reconcillations (continued)

e. Deferred tax

Under UK GAAP the deferred tax assct associated with the defined benefit pension deficit was required
to be netted off aganst the penston deficit Under IFRS, this asset 1s included with other deferred tax
balances 1n the balance sheet As a result the deferred tax balance wathin non-current assets 1s increased
by £8,750,000 at the date of transition and by 6,539,000 at 31 January 2011 There is no umpact on net
assets as there 1s a corresponding mcrease 1n the retirement benefit obligation within non-current
habilities

As noted within section 32 5(a) above, at the date of transition, a deferred tax habality of £256,000 was
recognised at the date of transition in respect of mtangible assets acquired on the acquusition of Hamson
Partnership Limited During the year ended 31 January 2011, there was a credit to the tncome statement
of £59,000 1n relation to this  Accordingly, at 31 January 2011 the net deferred tax asset 1s reduced by
£197,000

As noted within section 32 5(d) above the group s required to accrue for all short term accumulating
compensated absences such as holiday enutlement earned but not taken at the balance sheet date This 1s
a temporary difference under IAS12 'Income Taxes' As a result a deferred tax asset of £291,000 was
recognised at the date of transitton During the year ended 31 January 2011 there was a charge to the
income statement of £32,000 in relation to this  Accordingly, as 31 January 2011 the net deferred tax
asset Is increased by £259,000

32.6. Impalrment losses recognised at the point of transition

The Group has applied IAS 36 1n determining whether any umpairment losses arose at the date of
transition to IFRS No impatrment losses {ot reversals) were identified

The estimates used for this analysis were consistent with the estimates used under previous GAAP at the
same date, adjusted for accounting policy differences where necessary
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Company balance sheet
Note

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 2

Investments 3

Current assets

Stocks 4
Debtors 5
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts faling due within
one year 7

Net curtent habihties

Total assets less current lrabilities

Financed by.
Creditors: amounts after more than

one year 8
Defined benefit pension scheme
hability 9

Capital and reserves

Called-up equty share capital 12
Profit and loss account 13

Equity shareholder's deficit

£'000

128
7,985
1,354

9,467

(16,413)

11,438

2,543

(14,702)

2012

£'000

932
5,337

6,269

(6,946)

(677)

11,482

(12,159)

677

57
2011
£/000 £1000
1,081
5,559
6,640
103
7,159
1,162
8,424
(14,499)
(6,075)
565
475
9,897
10,372
2,543
(12,350)
(9,807)
565

These financial statements were approved by the directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 24 July 2012

and signed on their behalf by

M L. Bratch
Director

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the company financial statements

Statement of significant accounting policies

1.1. Basis of preparation
The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006
The separate financial statements of the company have been prepared under the historical cost convention

and 1n accordance with applhicable United Kingdom accounting standards (United Kangdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

A separate profit and loss for the parent company 1s omuitted from the parent company financial
statements by virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006

1.2. Investments

Investments arc stated at cost less any proviston for impairment
1.3. Fixed assets

Al fixed assets are tnitially recorded at cost

1.4. Depreciation

Depreciation 1s calculated so as to wnte off the cost of an asset, less 1ts estimated residual value, over the
useful economic life of that asset as follows

Leasehold property improvements - shorter of ten years or over period of lease
Plant & equipment - 25% reducing balance per annum

Motor vehicles - 25% reducing balance per annum
Computer equpment - 20% straight line per annum

1.5. Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value

1.6. Work In progress

The attributable profit on long-term contracts 1s recognised once their outcome can be assessed with
reasonable certamnty The profit recognised reflects the proportion of work completed to date on the
project Costs assoctated with long-term contracts are included in stock to the extent that they cannot be
matched with contract work accounted for as turnover Long term contract balances mcluded in stocks
are stated at cost after provision has been made for any foreseeable losses and the deduction of applicable
payments on account Full provision 1s made for losses on all contracts tn the year in which the loss 1s
first foreseen

1.7. Operating lease agreements

Rentals pard under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basts over
the lease term
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1.8. Finance leases and hire purchase agreements

Assets acquired under finance leases and hire purchase are treated as tangible fixed assets and depreciation
1s provided accordingly The present value of future rentals 1s shown as a lability and the interest element
of rental obligations 1s charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease in proportion to
the capital balance outstanding

1.9. Taxation

The charge for taxation 1s based on the result for the period and takes into account taxation deferred
because of timing differences berween the treatment of certain ttems for taxation and accounting
purposes Deferred tax 1s recognised on all tmung differences where the transactions or events that give
an obligation to pay more tax n the future, or a nght to pay less tax in the future, have occurred but not
reversed by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are recognised when 1t 1s more likely than not that they wall be recovered Deferred tax
1s measured usmg rates of tax that have been enacted ot substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and 15 not discounted

1.10. Pension costs and other post-retirement bhenefits

Defined benefit schemes

The amounts charged to operating profit are the cutrent service costs and gains and losses on settlements
and curtalments They are mcluded as part of staff costs Past service costs are recognised immediately n
the profit and loss account if the benefits have vested If the benefits have not vested immediately, the
costs are recognised over the period untl vesting occurs The interest cost and the expected return on
assets are shown as a net amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent to interest Actuarial gams and
losses are recognised immediately 1n the statement of total recognised gamns and losses

The defined benefit scheme 1s funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the
group, in a separate trustee-adminustered fund Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basts using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term
to the scheme liabilitnes The actuanal valuations are prepared on a triennital basts and updated annually
The resulting defined benefit asset or habihity, net of the related deferred tax, 1s presented separately after
other net assets on the face of the balance sheet Further details regarding the pension scheme are
contained 1n note 9 to the company financial statements

1.11. Financial instruments

Financtal liabilittes and equuty instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered mnto An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the entity after deductng all of 1ts financial liabihittes

Where the contractual obligations of financial mstruments (including share capital) ate equivalent to a
sumilar debt instrument, those financial mstruments are classed as finaneial habihines Financtal labilines
are presented as such in the balance sheet Finance costs and gains or losses relating to financial habilities
are included in the profit and loss account Finance costs are calculated so as to produce a constant rate of
return on the outstanding liability

Where the contractual terms of share capital do not have any terms meeting the definttion of a financial
liability then thus 15 classed as an equity tnstrument Dividends and distributions relating to equuty
mstruments are debited direct to equuty
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Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold
property Plant & Motor  Computer
imptrovements equipment vehicles equpment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2011 571 968 78 2412 4,029
Addittons 2 1 - 173 176
Disposals (3) {26} o @n (1,271) (1,327}
At 31 January 2012 570 943 51 1,314 2878
Depreciatton
At 1 February 2011 297 752 45 1,854 2,948
Charge for the year 57 54 7 186 304
Disposals (3 (23) (10) (1,270 (1,306)
At 31 January 2012 351 783 42 770 1,946
Net book value
At 31 January 2012 219 160 9 544 932
At 31 January 2011 274 216 33 558 1,081

The net bock value of fized assets mcludes an amount of £4,000 (2011 £9,000) 1n respect of assets held
under finance leases (including hire purchase contracts) The depreciation charge in respect of these

assets for the year was £5,000 (2011 £81,000)
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Investments
Company Investment in Investment 1n
assoclate subsidiary
undertakings  undertakings Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost and net book value
At 1 February 2011 24 5,535 5,559
Adjustment to deferred consideration - (222) {222)
At 31 January 2012 24 5,313 5,337

The investment in subsidiary undertakings comprises of the following undertakings incorporated n
England

Proportion

of voting

nghts and

Holding shares held Nature of business

NPS North East Limited Ordinary shares  100% Property consultants
NPS North West Limited Ordinary shares  100% Property consultants
NPS South East Limited QOrdmary shares  100% Property consultants
NPS Stockport Limited Ordimnary shares  80% Property consultants
NPS London Limited Ordimary shares  80% Property consultants
NPS South West Limited Ordmary shares  80% Property consultants
John Packer Associates Limuted Ordinary shares  100% Building services consultants
NPS Humber Limited Ordinary shares  60% Property consultants
Barron and Smiuth Limited Ordinary shates  100% Architects
Robson Liddle Limited Ordinary shares  100% Building services consultants
Hamson Parthership Lirmted Otdinary shares  100% Building services consultants
NPS Barnsley Limited Ordinary shares  80% Building services consultants
Barnsley Norse Lirnited* Ordinary shares 80% Catering, cleaning services

* shares held by subsidtary undertaking

Associate undertakings

The company has a 24% shareholding 1n Notth Lincolnshire Learning Parenershup (PSP) Lumuted, a
company incorporated 1n England The principal activaty of North Lincolnshire Learning Partnership
(PSP) Limated 15 that of a holding company North Lincolnshire Learning Partnership (PSP) Limuted
owns 80% of the share capital of Engage North Lincolnshire Limited, the principal acuvity of which 1s
construction and civil engineeting

The company also has a 35% shareholding in Lambeth Learming Partnershep (PSP) Limited, a company
incorporated in England The prncipal actvity of Lambeth Learning Partnership (PSP) Limuted 1s that of
a holding company Lambeth Learning Partnership (PSP} Limuted owns 80% of the share capital of
Engage Lambeth Limited, the principal activity of which 1s construcnon and civil engmeeting

Stocks
2012 2011
£'000 L1000

Work i progress 128 103
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Debtors
2012 2011
£'000 £000
‘Trade debtors 1,391 1,116
Amounts owed by group undertakings {note 11) 2,859 2,767
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings (note 11) 1,566 1,553
Amounts owed by associate undertakings 50 99
Corporation tax 486 281
Amounts recoverable on contracts 300 540
Other debtors 96 203
Deferred taxation {note 6) 128 185
Prepayments and accrued income 1,109 415
7,985 7,159
Deferred taxation
The movement 1n the deferred taxation asset during the year was
2012 2011
£'000 £1000
Asset brought forward 185 180
Omngination and reversal of urmng differences (57) 10
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (5)
Asset carrted forward (note 5) 128 185
'The deferred tax asset consists of the tax effect of tming differences m respect of
2012 2011
£'000 £1000
Excess of depreciation over capital allowances 105 159
Other uming differences 23 26
128 185
The movement 1n the deferred tax asset relating to the pension deficit 1s as follows
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Asset brought forward 3,660 3552
Credit/(charge) to profit and loss account in year 68 (727)
Deferred tax on actuartal loss for the year 356 962
Change 1n deferred tax rates 271 (127)
Asset carried forward 3,813 3,060
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Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2012 2011
£'000 £000
Trade creditors 499 603
Amounts owed to group undertakings (note 11} 5,586 4,326
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings (note 11) 4,495 5,210
Obligauons under finance leases 39 39
Other taxation and social secunty 2,817 2,325
Other creditors 1,157 611
Accruals and deferred income 1,820 1,385
16,413 14,499
The company
Included within other creditors 1s £130,00 (2011 £141,000) in respect of outstanding pension
contributtons
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2012 2011
£'000 £7000
Oblgations under finance leases 44 75
Loan notes - 400
44 475
Net obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are secured by the assets concerned
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are all repayable within five years
The loan notes fall due for repayment as follows
2012 2011
£'000 £1000
Within one year (included within other creditors) 160 400
Between one and two years - 400
160 800




NPS Property Consultants Limited 64
Company financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2012

Pension commitments

The calculations for FRS 17 disclosures are based on a full actuarial valuation of the scheme as at 31
Mateh 2010 updated to 31 January 2012 by a qualified independent actuary

The matn assumptons used by the actuares to calculate scheme liabilities of the company under FRS 17
were

2012 2011 2010

% Yo %

Rate of increase in salanes 36 41 40
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 2.3 31 35
Discount rate 4.9 56 55
Inflaton assumpuon 2.3 31 35

The post retitement mortahity assumptions used to value the benefit obligation at the year end are based
on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements from 2007 1 ine with the Medium Cohott and a 1% per
annum underpin  Based on these the average future life expectancies at age 65 are as follows

2012 2012 2011 2011

Males Females Males Females
Current pensioners (pears) 21.2 23.4 212 23 4
Future pensioners (years) 236 25.8 236 258

The actual return on scheme assets in the yeat was a gain of £462,000 (2011 loss of £713,000)

The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return, the present value of the scheme

liabilittes and the resulting defic1t are

2012 2011 2010
Long-
term Long- Long-
rate of term rate term rate
return of return of return
expected Value expected Value expected Value
% £'000 Yo £1000 % £000
Equsties 6.1 19,788 75 20,705 77 19,689
Bonds 38 6,282 50 5176 50 5,538
Property 4.1 4,083 55 3,349 57 3,384
Cash 3.2 1,256 46 1,218 48 2,154
Total market value of assets 31,409 30,448 30,765
Present value of scheme labilites (46,660) {44,005) (43,451)
Deficit in the scheme (15,251) (13,557) (12,686)
Related deferred tax asset 3,813 3,660 3,552
Net pension hability (11,438) 9,897)) (9,134
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Pension commitments (continued)

An analysis of the movement in the deficit during the year 1s shown below

At 1 February 2011

Total operaung (charge)/credit
Total finance charge

Acmanal loss

Employer contributions

At 31 January 2012

An analysis of the defined benefit (cost)/credit follows

Analysis of the amount (charged)/credited to operating profit

Current service cost
Past service (cost)/credit
Losses on settlements and curtalments

Total operating {charge)/credit

Analysis of the amount charged to finance costs

Expected return on penston scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme lhabdities

Total finance charge

Analysis of the amount recognised in statement of total recognised gains and losses

Actual return less expected retutn on penston scheme assets
Expernence losses arising on scheme habilines

Gain ansing from changes in assumptions underlying the
present value of scheme llabihities

Actuarial loss

65
2012 2011
£'000 L1000
(13,557) (12,686)
(1,198) 1,804
(417) (293)
(1,425) (3,562)
1,346 1,180
15,251 (13,557)
2012 2011
£'000 £7000
(1,123) (1,112)
(59) 2916
(16) -
(1,198) 1,804
|
2012 2011
£'000 £000
2,055 2,104 :
2,472) (2,397)
(417) (293)
2012 2011
£1000 £000
(1,593) (2.817)
. (3,069)
168 2,324
(1,425) (3,562) |
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Penslon commitments (continued)

Fve year hustory of scheme assets, abilities and net deficit posiion

2012 2011 2010
Difference between the
expected and actual return on
scheme assets
- amount (£'000) (1,593) (2,817) 2,941
- % of scheme assets (5) )] 10
Expenence (losses)/gains on
scheme liabilities
- amount (£000) - (3,069 -
- % of the present value of
scheme habilittes - N -

2009

(12,007)
(32)

1,821

4

2008

(3,549)
{8)

(2,182)

)

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the statement of total recognised gains
and losses at 31 January 2012 was a net loss of £11,793,000 (2011 net loss of £10,368,000)

Analysis of changes n the value of the scheme assets during the year

Market value of scheme assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on scheme assets

Actuarial losses

Employer contnibutions

Member contributions

Benefits pad

Market value of the scheme assets at the end of the year

Analysis of changes in the value of the scheme habilities during the year

Present value of scheme liabtlities at the start of the year
Total operaung charge/{credit)

Interest cost

Member contributions

Benefits paid

Actuanal (gamns)/losses

Present value of the scheme liabities at the end of the year

2012 2011
£'000 £/000
30,448 30,765
2,055 2,104
(1,593) (2,817
1,346 1,180
501 526
(1,348) (1,310)
31,409 30,448
2012 2011
£'000 £000
44,005 43,451
1,198 (1,804)
2,472 2,397
501 526
(1,348) (1,310)
(168) 745
46,660 44,005
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Pension commitments (continued)

Frve year history of scheme assets, ltabilites and net deficu position

Market value of plan assets at end of year 31,409 30,448
Present value of scheme habtlines at end of year  (46,660)  (44,005)

67
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£'000 £000 £/000 £000 L1000
30,765 37833 44,715

(43,451)  (50,840)  (51,700)

(12,686)  (13,007)  (6,985)

Net deficit mn the plan at end of year {15,251) (13,557)

Future funding obhigation

The directors anticipate that contnbutions of approximately £1,418,000 (2011 £1,328,000) will be pard 1n

the year to 31 January 2013
Commitments

Operating lease commitments

At 31 January 2012 the company had annual comrmuuments under non-cancellable operating leases as set

out below

Land and buildings

Assets other than land

and buildings

2012 2011 2012 2011
41000 £'000 £'000 £1000

Operatng leases which expire
Within 1 year - - 8 13
Within 2 to 5 years - - 41 44
Over 5 years 232 232 - -
232 232 49 57
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Related party transactions

NPS Property Consultants Limited had the following transactions and balances in the normal course of
trade with other companies within the NPS Property Consultants group

Transactions
Sales Purchases

2012 2011 2012 2011

£'000 £000 £'000 £7000

NPS North East Limited 394 195 101 128
NPS North West Limited 222 173 262 323
NPS Stockport Lumited 209 190 64 33
John Packer Associates Limited 36 34 109 284
NPS London Limated 302 166 8 2
NPS South West Limited 270 209 225 157
Robson Liddle Limited 26 22 12 4
Barron and Smith Limited 138 140 985 1,121
NPS South East Lumited 340 283 1,121 846
NPS Humber Limited 340 403 212 36
Hamson Partnership Lumuted 33 5 175 119

NPS Barnsley Limuted 195 - - -

In addiion to the above management charges amounung to £2,420,000 (2011 £2,433,000) were charged
to subsidiary undertakings

Balance Sheet

Debtot Creditor

2012 2011 2012 2011

£'000 £1000 £'000 £000

NPS North East Limited - - 799 87
NPS North West Limuted 1,611 1,717 - -
NPS Stockport Lirmuted - - 263 137
John Packer Assocrates Limited - - 39 251
NPS London Limnited 1,548 1,547 - -
NPS South West Limuted 459 143 - -
Robson Liddle Limuted 430 191 - -
Barron and Smuth Linuted 494 312 - -
NPS South East Limiated - - 3,472 2,697
NPS Humber Lirmuted - - 804 1,154
Hamson Partnership Limited 170 442 - -
NPS Bamsley Limited - - 209 -

At the year end there were provisions of £802,000 (2011 £834,000}, £942,000 (2011 £751,000) and
£109,000 (2011 £ml) agamst the balances due from NPS London Limited, NPS North West Limited and
Barron & Smith Limited respectively
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Related party transactions (continued)
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In addition NPS Property Consultants Limited had the following transactions in the normal course of
trade with the following entities within the Norfolk County Council and substdiartes group

Nerfolk County Council

Norse Commercial Services Limted
Waveney Norse Limited

GYB Services Limited

Suffolk Coastal Services Lumuted

Norfolk Environmental Waste Services Ltd
Norse Care Limited

Devon Notse Limited

Norfolk County Council

Norse Commercial Services Limited

GYB Services Limuted

Suffolk Coastal Services Limited
Eventguard Limuted

Norfolk Envitonmental Waste Services Ltd
Norse Care Limted

Devon Norse Limited

Transactions
Sales Purchases
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £1000 £1000
7,381 8,298 1,258 1,519
639 391 521 156
- 12 - .
- 7 - .
17 - 114 131
37 59 2 1
163 - - -
4 - - -
Balance Sheet

Debtor Creditot
2012 2011 2012 2011
£1000 £1000 £'000 £000
1,219 1,315 3,077 4,818
217 145 1,088 49
24 33 - -
- - - 13
15 - - -
- o0 330 330
89 - - -
2 - - -

In additton, the company mvests cash with Norfolk County Council on 2 commercial basts The amount
wnvested at 31 January 2012 was £1,307,000 (2011 - £1,044,000)

Share capital

Authorised shate capital

2,542 968 Ordinary shares of £1 each

Allotted, called up and fully paid

Ordinary shares of £1 each

2012
Number

2,542,968

£'000
2,543

2012 2011
£'000 £1000
2,543 2,543

201
Number £000
2,542 968 2,543
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Reserves
Profit and loss
account
£'000
At 1 February 2011 (12,350)
Loss for the year (1,012)
Actuanal loss m respect of defined benefit pension scheme (1,340)
At 31 January 2012 (14,702)

Proflt attributable to members of the parent company

The loss dealt with in the financial statements of the parent company was £1,012,000 (2011 profit of
£184.000)




